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TEN YEAR RECORD                                         
(Rs. in Crores)

2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08

Sales 2502.14 2982.07 2576.87 3310.26 2779.59 3707.17 2,520.46 2,075.64 2,469.62 1,655.94

Other Income 9.72 6.29 11.47 4.54 10.45 12.95 3.36 6.09 14.42 9.09

Interest 118.24 114.74 126.38 102.45 86.97 77.16 18.59 23.44 36.00 15.43

Depreciation 35.27 32.32 28.66 28.76 29.01 29.10 28.88 18.37 16.96 15.91

30.12 (31.40) 18.29 93.55 69.24 102.47 111.60 84.53 43.26 58.34

Balance Sheet 

Net Fixed Assets 638.61 656.07 631.77 625.95 485.36 491.88 391.17 385.27 336.51 324.60

Investments 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 200.00  -  - 0.05 0.05 0.05

Net Current Assets 1047.29 1183.98 965.45 1395.11 1168.06 1406.45 315.86 181.75 486.45 465.06

Total 1,685.90 1,840.05 1,797.22 2,221.06 1,853.42 1,898.33 707.03 567.07 823.01 789.71

Share Capital 118.55 118.55 118.55 118.55 118.55 118.55 118.55 118.55 118.55 118.55

Reserves & Surplus 305.49 285.97 536.23 517.31 464.70 416.94 366.55 311.06 270.65 254.25

Loan Funds 1200.79 1385.22 1083.39 1521.67 1229.47 1324.05 184.16 98.16 396.79 380.01

Deferred Tax Liability 61.07 50.31 59.05 63.53 40.70 38.79 37.77 39.30 37.02 36.90

Total 1,685.90 1,840.05 1,797.22 2,221.06 1,853.42 1,898.33 707.03 567.07 823.01 789.71

           31.03.2017 are under Ind AS.
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NOTICE
To

Notice is hereby given that the Fiftieth (50th) Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be held on Monday,  

Marshal K. M. Cariappa Road (Residency Road), Bengaluru - 560 025 to transact the following businesses: 

ended on that date and the reports of the Board of Directors and Statutory Auditors.

3. To re-appoint Mr. Akshay Poddar (DIN: 00008686), who retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for the 
re-appointment. 

 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as may be applicable and pursuant to the recommendations of 
the Audit Committee, M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005), be appointed 
as statutory auditors of the Company, in place of retiring auditors M/s. K. P. Rao & Co, Chartered Accountants (FRN 003135S), to 

th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 55th Annual General Meeting, subject to 

be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Ordinary Resolution:

 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

the time being in force) (“the Act”), and the applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, Mr. Sunil Sethy (DIN: 00244104), in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a 
member under Section 160 of the Act, proposing his candidature for appointment as a Director, be and is hereby appointed as 
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

Ordinary Resolution:

 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

force) read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mrs. Rita Menon (DIN: 00543058), in respect of whom the Company has received a notice 
in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act, proposing her candidature for appointment as Director, be and is 
hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a period of three (3) years with effect from July 29, 2017 to 
July 28, 2020, not liable to retire by rotation.

Ordinary Resolution:

provisions of Section 197, 198, 199, 200 and 202 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read 
with Schedule V of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, including 

authorities including the Central Government in granting such approvals, permissions, sanctions, if any, the approval of members 
be and is hereby accorded for payment of consolidated salary of Rs. 8,00,000 per month to Mr. N. Suresh Krishnan, Managing 
Director, with such annual increments as may be determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and / or the Board 
of Directors for a period of three (3) years with effect from April 01, 2017 to March 31, 2020. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the other terms and conditions of his appointment like tenure, reimburserment of expenses, other 

General Meeting held on September 27, 2016 shall remain same.
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 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything contain  

the requisite approvals including the approval of the Central Government, if any, pay the above remuneration to Mr. N. Suresh 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, be and is hereby 
authorized to vary, increase or enhance the remuneration of Mr. N. Suresh Krishnan, Managing Director, during the period 
from April 01, 2017 to March 31, 2020 within the scale of consolidated salary of Rs. 8,00,000 per month to such an amount 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the any one Director and/or Mr. Vijayamahantesh Khannur, Company Secretary of the Company be and 
are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary, 

necessary documents, applications, returns and writings as may be necessary, proper, desirable or expedient to give effect to the 
above resolution.

Ordinary Resolution:

 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 2(78), 196, 197, 198, 199, 200, 202, and all other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with Schedule V of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

may be prescribed or imposed by any of the authorities including the Central Government in granting such approvals, permissions, 
sanctions, if any, the approval of members be and is hereby accorded for appointment of Mr. K. Prabhakar Rao as  Director – 
Works, for a further period of three years from August 01, 2017 up to July 31, 2020.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for following remuneration payable and other 
terms of appointment to Mr. K. Prabhakar Rao during his tenure as Director – Works: 

a. Basic Salary: The Basis Salary shall be in the range of Rs. 2,15,000 per month to Rs. 4,00,000 per month. The annual increments 
will be decided by the Board of Directors and/or the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and will be based on merit after 
taking into account other relevant factors. 

b. Flexi Pay and Variable Pay: The Flexi Pay and Variable Pay shall be according to the applicable policies / schemes of the Company 
from time to time during his tenure, as may be decided by the Board of Directors and/or the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee.

relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  
d. Termination: By giving the other party, six months’ notice

the requisite approvals including the approval of the Central Government, if any, pay the above remuneration to Mr. K. Prabhakar 
Rao, Director - Works, as the minimum remuneration by way of salary, perquisites, allowances, performance bonus and other 

pension scheme or gratuity and leave encashment, if any, shall not be included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration 

enactment thereof. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of Directors of the Company 
and/or the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, be and is hereby authorized to vary, increase, enhance or widen 
from time to time the terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration of Mr. K. Prabhakar Rao, Director – Works 
during the period from August 01, 2017 to July 31, 2020 within the scale of basic salary of Rs. 2,15,000 per month to 

Ordinary Resolution:

 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 197, 198 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013, Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 including any statutory 

 in force), Regulation 17(6) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
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Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Article 99 of the Articles of Association of the Company, the approval of the members 
be and is hereby accorded for payment of remuneration by way of commission to Directors (whether existing or future) other than 

Board of Directors of the Company, subject to a maximum of Rs. 5,00,000 per annum per Director, payable at such periodicity as 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT such remuneration paid to its Directors (whether existing or future) other than the Managing / 
Whole-time Directors will be in addition to the payment of sitting fees and reimbursement of expenses, if any, to the Directors for 
attending the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees thereof. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors, or the duly constituted Committee of the Board, or the Managing Director, or 

and things as may be necessary including seeking of all approvals, if any, to give effect to this Resolution and to settle any 

Ordinary Resolution:

 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and 

of remuneration of Rs. 
levies, if any, and reimbursement of actual expenses incurred on  travel, accommodation and other out-of-pocket expenses to 
Mr. P. R. Tantri, Cost Accountant (Membership Number 2403), for conducting audit of cost records of the Company for the Financial 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors is authorized to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to 
give effect to the aforesaid resolution.

   By the order of the Board

Bengaluru Vijayamahantesh Khannur             
August 22, 2017 Company Secretary

NOTES

1. An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed hereto.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO 
ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. The 
instrument appointing proxy in prescribed form, in order to be effective should be duly completed, signed and must be sent to 

Members and holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of the total paid-up share capital of the Company. Members holding 
more than ten percent of the total paid up share capital of the Company may appoint a single person as proxy, who shall not act 
as a proxy for any other Member. 

3. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from September 19, 2017 to September 25, 2017 

2016-17, if declared.

4. All relevant documents referred to in the Notice and the statements/reports annexed to Notice shall be open for inspection by 

days (except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) up to the date of the Annual General Meeting. 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(5) and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, the dividend amount remaining unclaimed/
unpaid for a period of seven years from the due date of payment shall be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund (IEPF) established by Central Government. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(6) and Section 125 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, all shares in respect of 
which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall be transferred by the Company to the IEPF 
within 30 days of they becoming due to be transferred.

 Members who have not yet encashed their dividend warrant(s) are requested to make their claims without any delay.
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 IT MAY BE NOTED THAT THE UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND PERTAINING TO THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2009-10 IS DUE FOR TRANSFER TO 
THE INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND AND THE SAME CAN BE CLAIMED FROM THE COMPANY ON OR BEFORE 
NOVEMBER 03, 2017.

6. Electronic copy of the Notice of the 50th Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of 
e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with the 
Company/Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. 
For members who have not registered their email address, physical copies of the Notice of the 50th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form are being sent in the 
permitted mode.

7. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to provide the members the facility to exercise their right to vote at the 
50th Annual General Meeting by way of remote e-voting i.e casting votes by a member using an electronic voting system from a 
place other than venue of a General Meeting, and the business may be transacted through e-voting services provided by Central 
Depositories Services (India) Limited. The ballot or polling paper shall also be made available at the meeting and members 
attending the meeting who have not already casted their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the 
meeting. Members who have casted their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but shall not 
be entitled to cast their vote again. 

 The Company has appointed Mr. Sudhindra K S, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 7909 and CP No. 8190), 

remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner, as a Scrutinizer. After the conclusion of the voting at the meeting, the 
Scrutinizer shall count votes cast at the meeting and through remote e-voting and provide a consolidated Scrutinizer’s report 
of the total votes cast, within a period of three days from the date of conclusion of the meeting, to the Chairman or a person 
authorized by him in writing who shall countersign the same. The Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing shall declare 
the result of the voting forthwith. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the Company’s 
website www.mangalorechemicals.com and on the website of CDSL – www.cdslindia.com and communicated to the Stock 
Exchanges. 

i. The remote e-voting period begins at 9.00 AM on September 21, 2017 and ends at 5.00 PM on September 24, 2017. The facility 
for remote e-voting shall forthwith be blocked at the end of the period of remote e-voting. 

ii. The cut-off date for determining the eligibility to vote by electronic means or in the General Meeting shall be September 18, 
2017. Members who are holding shares on cut-off date are only eligible for remote e-voting and attending Annual General 
Meeting. 

iii. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com during the voting period 
iv. Click on “Shareholders” tab. 
v. Now Enter your Login ID.

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company. 

vii. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any 
company, then your existing password is to be used. 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as 
well as physical shareholders)     

In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s before the number after the 

Dividend Bank 
Details OR 
Date of Birth 
(DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account or in the 
Company’s records in order to login.      

If both the details are not recorded with the depository or Company please enter the member id / folio number in the 

ix. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 
x. Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, members holding 

shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login 
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password in the new pa
resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL 
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 

xi. For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this 
Notice. 

xii. Click on the EVSN of Mangalore Chemicals & Fertilizers Limited to vote. 
xiii. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select 

the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you 
dissent to the Resolution. 

xiv. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

xvi. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
xvii. You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page. 

Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 
xix. Note for Non-Individual Shareholders & Custodians: 

www.
evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates. 
A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com. 

on. 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be 

able to cast their vote.  

any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.
xx. Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android based mobiles. The m-Voting app 

can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app by voting on your 
mobile. 

xxi. In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting 
manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

8. Members / Proxy holders are requested to produce the enclosed attendance slip duly completed and signed at the entrance of the 
meeting venue.

9. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 
2013, will be available for inspection by the members at the Annual General Meeting.

10. The Register of Contracts, maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the 
members at the Annual General Meeting.

11. Members should address all correspondence to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent at the following address quoting 
their Registered Folio Number or Demat Account Number & Depository Participant (DP) ID Number.

 Cameo Corporate Services Limited  
 Subramanian Building, No.1, Club House Road, Chennai-600 002 
 Phone: 91-44-2846 0390 to 94 Fax : 91-44-2846 0129
 E-mail: investor@cameoindia.com

12. The equity shares of the Company are mandated by Securities and Exchange Board of India for compulsory trading in demat form 
by all investors. The Company’s shares have been admitted into both the depositories viz. National Securities Depository Limited 
[NSDL] and Central Depository Services (India) Limited [CDSL]. The ISIN allotted to the Company’s equity shares is INE558B01017.

13. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify any change in their addresses, mandates/bank details immediately 
to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Cameo Corporate Services Limited, Chennai. Such members are requested to 
dematerialize their physical shares into electronic form by sending a demat request to their concerned depository participants. 

14. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank details to their Depository 
Participant in order to arrange the dividend payment by NECS/ECS or through warrant by printing the bank details, as the case may 
be.
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TORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Item No. 4
 
Though not mandatory, this statement is provided for reference.

th Annual General 
th Annual General Meeting. Since 

M/s. K. P. Rao & Co has completed maximum number of consecutive years for which they were eligible to be re-appointed in the 
Company, including transitional period of 3 years, M/s. K. P. Rao & Co shall not be eligible for re-appointment at the conclusion of 
50th Annual General Meeting as Statutory Auditor as per Section 139(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’).

Accordingly, as per the said requirements of the Act, M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 301003E/
E300005), are proposed to be appointed as auditors for a period of 5 years, from the conclusion of 50th Annual General Meeting till the 
conclusion of the 55th

to be appointed as statutory auditors in terms of the provisions of the proviso to Section 139(1), 141(2) and 141(3) of the Act and the 
provisions of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 

of the Notice. 

Item No. 5 

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on July 29, 2017 appointed Mr. Sunil Sethy as an Additional Director of the Company and his 
tenure expires at this Annual General Meeting. A notice along with the deposit of Rs. 1,00,000/-has been received in writing by a member 
under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing appointment of Mr. Sunil Sethy as a Director of the Company at this Annual 
General Meeting, who shall be liable to retire by rotation. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has recommended appointment 
of Mr. Sunil Sethy as Director at its meeting held on July 29, 2017. 

Mr. Sunil Sethy is interested in the Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice in regard to his appointment. The relatives of 
Mr. Sunil Sethy may be deemed to be interested in the Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice, to the extent of their shareholding 
interest, if any, in the Company. 

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, 

out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval of the members.

Item No. 6 

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on July 29, 2017 appointed Mrs. Rita Menon as an Additional Director of the Company 
in the category of Independent Directors and her tenure expires at this Annual General Meeting. A notice along with the deposit of 
Rs. 1,00,000/-has been received in writing by a member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing appointment of 
Mrs. Rita Menon as an Independent Director of the Company at this Annual General Meeting for a period of three (3) years with effect 
from July 29, 2017 to July 28, 2020. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee, at its meeting held on July 29, 2017, has recommended 
appointment of Mrs. Rita Menon as Director for a period of three (3) years from July 29, 2017 to July 28, 2020.

Mrs. Rita Menon is interested in the Resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice in regard to her appointment. The relatives of 
Mrs. Rita Menon may be deemed to be interested in the Resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice, to the extent of their shareholding 
interest, if any, in the Company. 

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, 

out at Item No. 6 of the Notice for approval of the members.
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Item No. 7 

The shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 27, 2016 had approved appointment of 

a. Salary: The Company shall not pay any salary, commission or remuneration to Mr. N. Suresh Krishnan, Managing Director from the 
date of his appointment, until further recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board 
of Directors.

c. Termination: By giving the other party, six months’ notice

It is proposed to pay consolidated salary of Rs. 8,00,000 per month to Mr. N. Suresh Krishnan, Managing Director, with such annual 
increments, not exceeding the limits mentioned in Para (A) of Section II of Part II of Schedule V, as may be determined by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and / or the Board of Directors for a period of three (3) years with effect from April 01, 2017 to March 31, 
2020. The other terms and conditions as approved by the members at the Annual General Meeting held on September 27, 2016 would 
remain unchanged.

The remuneration is approved by the Board of Directors and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their meetings held on 
May 17, 2017 and May 18, 2017 respectively. The Company has not made any default in repayment of any of its debts or debentures or 

details mentioned in the resolution above. Thus, it is proposed to seek approval of the shareholders by way of an Ordinary Resolution in 

without the approval of the Central Government.
 
Other information as required under Section II of Part II of Schedule V. 

I.  General Information:
(1) Nature of industry: Manufacture of fertilizer and other plant nutrient products
(2)  Commencement of commercial production: 1976
(3)  Financial performance based on given indicators:

 (Rs. in Crore)

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16

Sales 2511.86 2988.35

EBITDA 183.61 115.66

(4) Foreign investments or collaborations, if any: None
  

II.  Information about the appointee:
(1)  Background details: Mr. N. Suresh Krishnan has been appointed as Managing Director of the Company with effect from Jan 01, 

2016. He is also Managing Director of Zuari Global Limited with effect from April 01, 2015. With 27 years of corporate experience 
in fertilizer, energy and cement sectors, Mr. Krishnan has been associated with Adventz Group for over 2 decades and has been 
widely acknowledged for his dynamic leadership, vision and commitment. Before taking over as Managing Director of Zuari 
Global Limited, he was Managing Director of Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited since March 2012. 

(2)  Past remuneration: Mr. N. Suresh Krishnan is Managing Director of Zuari Global Limited. His remuneration for the FY 2015-16 
from Zuari Global Limited was Rs. 2.40 crores (approx).

(3)  Recognition or awards: Mr. N. Suresh Krishnan is an alumnus of BITS (Pilani). He is also on the Boards of several Adventz group 
companies and joint ventures. 

international markets, forging and managing joint ventures and acquisitions and in executing turnaround strategies alongside 
day-to-day operations in the manufacturing sector. 

(5)  Remuneration proposed: As disclosed above.

remuneration. 
(7)  Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company, or relationship with the managerial personnel: None
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III.  Other information:

Directors’ report and Management Discussion and Analysis attached to Board of Directors’ report.
 
IV.  Other Disclosures:
 The other required disclosures are made in the Corporate Governance Report attached to the Board of Directors’ report.

 Mr. N. Suresh Krishnan is interested in the resolution set out at Item No.7 of the Notice. The relatives of Mr. N. Suresh Krishnan may 
be deemed to be interested in the Resolution set out at Item No. 7 of the Notice, to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, 
in the Company. 

 Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in 

Resolution set out at Item No. 7 of the Notice for approval of the members.

Item No. 8 

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 
July 29, 2017 appointed Mr. K. Prabhakar Rao as Director–Works for a further period of three (3) years from August 01, 2017 up to July 
31, 2020 on the following terms. 

a. Basic Salary: The Basis Salary shall be in the range of Rs. 2,15,000 per month to Rs. 4,00,000 per month. The annual increments will 
be decided by the Board of Directors and/or the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and will be based on merit after taking 
into account other relevant factors. 

b. Flexi Pay and Variable Pay: The Flexi Pay and Variable Pay shall be according to the applicable policies / schemes of the Company 
from time to time during his tenure, as may be decided by the Board of Directors and/or the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee.

to the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  
d. Termination: By giving the other party, six months’ notice

Any variation in the remuneration shall be as per the Resolution set out at Item No. 8 of the Notice. The remuneration is approved by 
the Board of Directors and the Nomination & Remuneration Committee at their respective meetings held on July 29, 2017. The Company 
has not made any default in repayment of any of its debts or debentures or interest payable thereon for a continuous period of thirty 

details mentioned in the Resolution above. Thus, it is proposed to seek approval of the shareholders by way of an Ordinary Resolution 

without the approval of the Central Government.

Other information as required under Section II of Part II of Schedule V. 

I.  General Information:
(1) Nature of industry: Manufacture of fertilizer and other plant nutrient products
(2)  Commencement of commercial production: 1976
(3)  Financial performance based on given indicators: 

 (Rs. in Crore)

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16

Sales 2511.86 2988.35

EBITDA 183.61 115.66

(4) Foreign investments or collaborations, if any: None
  

II.  Information about the appointee:
(1)  Background details: Mr. K Prabhakar Rao is working with the Company over a period of 40 years and has held various 

managerial positions before designating as Director – Works. 
(2)  Past remuneration: Rs. 86.85 lakhs during 2016-17.

(3)  Recognition or awards: None. 
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suitability: The position is of Director – Works and designated as Principal Employer is heading all the 
operations of the Plant. 

(5)  Remuneration proposed: As disclosed above.

(7)  Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company, or relationship with the managerial personnel: None

III.  Other information:

Directors’ report and Management Discussion and Analysis attached to Board of Directors’ report.
 
IV.  Other Disclosures:
 The other required disclosures are made in the Corporate Governance Report attached to the Board of Directors’ report.

 Mr. K. Prabhakar Rao is interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 8 of the Notice. The relatives of Mr. K. Prabhakar Rao may 
be deemed to be interested in the Resolution set out at Item No. 8 of the Notice, to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, 
in the Company. 

 Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in 

Resolution set out at Item No. 8 of the Notice for approval of the members.

Item No. 9

The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for attending the Board and Committee meetings and reimbursement of expenses 
incurred for attending the meetings of the Board or its Committees. With the constitution of various Committees of the Board, the 
increasing demand for the independent and professional Directors on various matters relating to the Company and the ever changing 
regulatory environment, it is advisable to appropriately compensate, attract and retain professionals on the Board. In order to remunerate 
the Non-Executive Directors (whether existing or future) for rendering their services to the Company, it is proposed to pay remuneration 
by way of commission to the Directors (whether existing or future) other than the Managing / Whole-time Directors, collectively up to 

Rs.
to the sitting fees and reimbursement of expenses, if any, for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees thereof.

Accordingly, approval of the Shareholders is sought by way of an Ordinary Resolution for payment of remuneration by way of commission 
to the Directors of the Company other than the Managing / Whole-time Directors. The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set 
out under Item No. 9 of the Notice for approval by the members.

The Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are not concerned or 

Directors of the Company and their relatives may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the Resolution set out at Item No. 9 of the 
Notice to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company.

Item No. 10 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, the Board of Directors have approved the appointment of Mr. P R Tantri, Cost Accountant (Membership Number 2403), as Cost 

Rs. 
exclusive of applicable taxes and other statutory levies, if any, and reimbursement of actual expenses incurred on  travel, accommodation 
and other out-of-pocket expenses. 

year 2017-18.

or otherwise in this matter.
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Name of the Director Akshay Poddar Sunil Sethy Rita Menon
Date of Birth July 20, 1976 March 27, 1951 December 25, 1951 July 2, 1955

Master of Science in 
Leadership & Strategy from 
London Business School.

Honors in Accounting and 
Finance from London School 
of Economics and Political 
Science, University of London.

Mr. Sunil Sethy is a Fellow 
Member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of 
India (1974).

M A (Economics) from Delhi 
School of Economics. 

batch.

B.E (Chemicals).

Inter-se relationship 
with Directors of the 
Company

None None None None

Expertise in Functional 
area

Over 16 years of track record 
of promoting and managing 

industries like fertilizers, agri-
inputs, heaving engineering, 
sugar, consumer products, 
real estate, investments and 
furniture etc.

He is a Finance professional 
having 40 years of experience 
in different companies out 
of which 29 years in Finance 
discipline and 11 years as MD 
/ CEO. He was holding the 
position as Vice Chairman & 
MD in Binani Industries Ltd, 
Finance Head / MD in Chambal 
Fertilizers & Chemicals Ltd, 
Director (Finance) in Eternit 
Everest Ltd, Controller of 
Finance in PSI Data Systems 
Ltd. He was Director in 
Paradeep Phosphates Limited 
and Simon India Limited. He 
has held important positions 
in many other companies. 

she has worked in various 
positions like CMD of ITPO, 
Chairperson of TNTPO & 
KTPO, Joint Secretary to 
Secretary Positions at various 
Central Ministries, MD of UP 
Finance Corporation, Director 
at various central and private 
sector undertakings like BEL, 
GRSEL, Goa Shipyard Ltd, 
Mazagaon Dock Ltd, SIDBI 
etc. 

Mr. Prabhakar Rao, has been 
working with the Company 
since 1978 and has handled 
various responsibilities in 
the Company. As Director 
– Works, he is presently 
responsible for production, 
maintenance, quality 
control, technical services, 
projects, safety and logistics 
at the Company’s plant in 
Mangaluru.

Mr. Rao has widely travelled 
and participated in many 
National and International 
symposiums. He has attended 
various Management 
Development Programs in 
premier Institutions such as 
IIM Bengaluru & Ahmedabad.

Directorships in other 
Public Companies

Director in Adventz Securities 
Enterprises Limited, Lionel 
Edwards Ltd, Indian Chamber 
of Commerce, Kolkata, 
Texmaco Infrastructure 
& Holdings Limited, YPO, 
Kolkata, Texmaco Rail & 
Engineering Limited, Zuari 
Agro Chemicals Limited and 
Lionel India Limited.

Director in Zuari Infraworld 
India Ltd, Zuari Speciality 
Fertilizers Limited and Quick 
Heal Technologies Limited.
Managing Director in 
Paradeep Phosphates Limited 
and Zuari Agro Chemicals 
Limited.

Micromax Informatics Limited Nil

Membership / 
Chairmanship 
in other Public 
Companies

Chairman Member Chairman Member Chairman Member Chairman Member

Audit Committee Nil Nil 2 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee

1 2 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Shareholding in the 
Company

NIL NIL NIL NIL

By the order of the Board

Bengaluru Vijayamahantesh Khannur             
August 22, 2017  Company Secretary
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members, 

1. Your Directors place before you the Fiftieth Annual Report of 
the Company together with Statement of Accounts for the 

2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

2016-17 
2,511.86

EBITDA 183.61
Finance Costs 118.24
Depreciation 35.26

30.11

          -        
30.11
10.70
19.41

Other Comprehensive Income 0.10 
Total Comprehensive Income 19.52

1.64
Net Worth* 424. 03

 

3. DIVIDEND 

4. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 

SALES

YEARS

 C
rs

.

PRODUCTION

La
kh

s 
- 

M
Ts

YEARS

 
5. PRODUCTION

 Urea

 

 Di-Ammonium Phosphate (DAP) and Complex 
Fertilizers

R
s.

 C
rs

.

YEARS

EBITDA
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 Ammonium Bi-carbonate (ABC)

6. SALES 

 

 Sulphonated Naphthalene Formaldehyde (SNF)

 
 

 

 Specialty Plant Nutrition (SPN) Products

 
soil health, correct imbalances in the nutrients essential for 

The response from the crop growers on the effectiveness of 

popularize usage

 

 
 

 

unfavorable agriculture situation in the States that are critical 

 Crop Protection Chemical (CPC) Products

 
 

 Analytical and Advisory Service

 To promote the concept of Mangala INM, R & D facility 

substrates of soil, water, plant tissues, plant nutrients, organic 

facilities, analysis of the samples pertaining to our customers 

7. WORKING CAPITAL
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8. RENOVATION/MODERNIZATION OF AMMONIA/UREA 
PLANTS – NATURAL GAS CONVERSION PROJECT

 

unsatisfactory progress in laying of gas pipeline from Kochi 

9. FERTILIZER POLICY
 Ammonia Plant Energy Reduction Project

 

10. SAFETY, HEALTH, ENVIRONMENT AND POLLUTION 
CONTROL

 Safety

 

 

usage of personal protective equipment, emergency 
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 Health

those who require high visual acuity at workplace were 

 Environmental Pollution Control 

11. EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN

 

12. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING 
THE YEAR 

13. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 

 
 

ance with the provisions of the Companies 
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14. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTORS

 

15. DIRECTORS 

 

 

16. DIRECTORS’ TRAINING & FAMILIARIZATION 

 

17. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

 
 

Performance evaluation of every Director by the 

obligations, governance parameters, participation of the 

18. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY 

Directors, remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial 

19. SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AND JOINT 
VENTURES 

 

20. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

 Terms of Reference:

tim
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 During the year, the Committee 
 

Name of the 
member 

Status No. of meetings 
attended

Chairman 
D A Prasanna@ Member
Kapil Mehan% Member 

21. COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND VIGIL 
MECHANISM

Company 

22. RISK MANAGEMENT 

the best techniques to manage risk, implement appropriate 
risk management techniqu

23. LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

25. DEPOSITS 

26. STATUTORY AUDIT

th Annual 

th

th

th Annual General Meeting till the 
th

th Annual General Meeting till 
th
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27. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

 

28. COST AUDIT 

 

29. AUDITORS’ REPORT & SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

30. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING 
THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 

31. DETAILS PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 
respect of employees of the Company, shall form part of 

this report is being sent to all the members of the Company 

32. DISCLOSURE AS PER SECTION 22 OF THE SEXUAL 
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 
2013

 

33. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND 
DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

 The information pertaining to conservation of energy, 
 
 

 

34. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 The Company is committe  to goo  corporate governance 
practices The avors to a re to the stan r
set out by the Securities a  E hange Boar  of In ia (SEB
on corporate governance practices  accor ingly has 
implem  all the stipulatio

35. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,   

Arun Duggal
Chairman

Gurugram 
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Annexure 1 

Extract of Annual Return as at March 31, 2017

I.  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

CIN
Registration Date
Name of the Company

Yes

Transfer Agent

 II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

 The business activities contributing  or more of the total turnover of the Company 

Sl. 
No.

Name and Description  of main products/services NIC Code of the 
Product/service

% to total turnover of 
the Company

Urea

 III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

 
 IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning
of the year

No. of Shares held at the end
of the year

% Change 
during 

the year      Demat Physical Total % of total 
shares

Demat Physical Total % of total 
shares

A Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group
1 Indian

Family

 Sub Total(A)(1) 88886107 - 88886107 75.00 88886107 - 88886107 75.00
2 Foreign
a

b
c Institutions

e
 Sub Total(A)(2)
 Total Shareholding of 

Promoter     and Promoter 
Group (A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)

88886107 - 88886107 75.00 88886107 - 88886107 75.00
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Category of shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning
of the year

No. of Shares held at the end
of the year

% Change 
during 

the year      Demat Physical Total % of total 
shares

Demat Physical Total % of total 
shares

B) Public shareholding
1) Institutions

Insurance Companies
Foreign Institutional Investors

 Foreign Portfolio Investor 

 Sub-Total (B)(1) 2166271 475421 2641692 2.23 2120360 475421 2595781 2.19 -0.04
2) Non-institutions

 
nominal share capital up to

 

of 

 Clearing Member
 Foreign Nationals
 
 
 Societies

 Trusts
 Sub-Total (B)(2) 21582317 5405034 26987351 22.77 21714455 5318807 27033262 22.81 0.04

 Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2) 23748588 5880455 29629043 25.00 23834815 5794228 29629043 25.00 0.00

 TOTAL (A)+(B) 112634695 5880455 118515150 100.00 112720922 5794228 118515150 100.00 0.00
C)

- - - -
Public - - - -

 GRAND TOTAL (A) + (B) + (C) 112634695 5880455 118515150 100.00 112720922 5794228 118515150 100.00

ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl. 
No.

Shareholder’s Name No. of Shares held at the beginning of 
the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change 
during 

the yearNo. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged/

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged/

encumbered 
to total 
shares

TOTAL 88886107 75.00 40.11 88886107 75.00 40.11

* 
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iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. 
No. Name of the Promoter

Date
(ddmmyyyy)

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of shares -
purchase (+)/

sale (-)

% of total 
shares of the 

Company

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company
1 Zuari Fertilisers and Chemicals Limited

2 United Breweries (Holdings) Limited*

3 McDowell Holdings Limited

4

*  

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Sl. 
No.

Top 10 Shareholders Date
(ddmmyyyy)

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of shares -
purchase (+)/

sale(-)

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of
shares 

% of total 
shares of the 

company
1 Reliance Capital Limited

At the beginning of the year

2
At the beginning of the year

3 Aum Capital Market Pvt.Ltd
At the beginning of the year
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Sl. 
No.

Top 10 Shareholders Date
(ddmmyyyy)

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of shares -
purchase (+)/

sale(-)

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of
shares 

% of total 
shares of the 

company
4 IIFL National Development Agenda Fund

At the beginning of the year

5 Gujarat State Fertilizers & Chemicals  Limited
At the beginning of the year

6 Karnataka Agro Industries Corporation Limited
At the beginning of the year

7 Orde Management Private Limited
At the beginning of the year

8 Mehinder Sharma                                                                
At the beginning of the year

9 Gita Agarwala
At the beginning of the year

10 Reliance Spot Exchange Infrastructure Limited
At the beginning of the year

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:



24

Mangalore Chemicals
& Fertilizers Limited

 V. INDEBTEDNESS (Rs. in lakhs)

 
Secured Loans 

excluding 
Deposits

Unsecured Loans Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

    

Total (i+ii+iii)    134,408.55     5,707.60 -      140,116.15 

Net Change    (14,886.93)   (4,582.80) -          (19,469.73)   

Total (i+ii+iii)    119,521.61     1,124.81 -   120,646.42

 VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole ime Directors a or Manage (Rs. in lakhs)

Sl.
No Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total
AmountK. Prabhakar Rao N. Suresh Krishnan*

Gross salary
provisions  the 

Act, 

salary 
Act, 

66.50

10.73
-

Stock Option -
Sweat Equity -
Commission

specify

-

-
9.62

Total 86.85
Ceiling as per the Act

Remuneration to other Direct  (Rs. in lakhs)

Sl. 
No. Particulars of remuneration

Name of the Director
Total

AmountArun 
Duggal

Narendra 
Mairpady

Pratap 
Narayan

DA 
Prasanna

Ritu 
Mallya

Kapil 
Mehan

Akshay 
Poddar

Deepak 
Anand

V S 
Venkata-

raman

o 
committee meetings

14.20

o Commission -
o Others, please specify -

14.20
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Sl. 
No. Particulars of remuneration

Name of the Director
Total

AmountArun 
Duggal

Narendra 
Mairpady

Pratap 
Narayan

DA 
Prasanna

Ritu 
Mallya

Kapil 
Mehan

Akshay 
Poddar

Deepak 
Anand

V S 
Venkata-

raman

o 
committee meetings

7.55

o Commission -
o Others, please specify -

7.55
21.75

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

(Rs. in lakhs)

Sl. 
no.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total
AmountCFO CS

Gross salary
65.49

9.70
-

Stock Option -
Sweat Equity -
Commission

-
-

4.78
Total 79.97

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES 

 

This sp
ace is in

tentionally le
ft blank
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Annexure 2

Nomination & Remuneration Policy
1. Preamble 

2. 

 

of Directors, comprising all members of management one 

3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee  

4. Role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee  

 

remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of 

5. Guidelines on Nomination and Remuneration 

appointment as Director, Key Managerial Personnel or at 

Regulations or any other enactment for the time being in 
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The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance 

The Committee authorizes the Managing Director to 

Managerial Personnel, in consultation with respective 

Managerial Personnel or Senior Management Personnel, 
if any Director, Key Managerial Personnel or Senior 

Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable 

Director, Key Management Personnel, Senior Management 
Personnel even after attaining the retirement age, for the 

at a meeting or when his or her performance is being 

6. Amendments to the Policy 

 

7. Governing law

This sp
ace is in

tentionally le
ft blank
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Annexure 3 

Annual Report on CSR Activities

Focus Area Activities

Mangala Akshara Mitra

Community Development Development of Rural Areas
Assistance to tribal community

 The CSR Policy is available on the website of the Company 

Name of the member Status
Chairman 

D A Prasanna* Member
Kapil Mehan% Member 

 

(Rs. in lakhs)

Sl.
No.

CSR project or activity Sector in which the
project is covered

Projects or programs
(1) Local area or other

(2) Specify the State and
district where projects or

programs were undertaken

Amount
outlay (budget) 

project
or program

wise

Amount 
spent on the
projects or
programs

Cumulative
expenditure
upto to the
reporting 

period

Amount spent:
Direct or 
through

implementing
agency

Mangala Akshara Mitra Direct

Sanitation & Drinking 
water

Direct

Eye Care Direct

Rural Sports, Arts & Culture Rural Area Development Direct

Community Development Rural Area Development Direct

TOTAL 43.20 31.66 31.66
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Managing Director              Chairman, CSR Committee 

Annexure 4

Form No. AOC - 2

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Name(s) of the
related party
and nature of
relationship

Nature of
contracts/

arrangements/
transactions

Durations of
the contracts/
arrangements/

transactions

Salient terms of
the contracts/
arrangements/

transactions including
the value, if any

Date(s) of
approval by
the Board, if 

any

Amount paid 
as

advance, if 
any

business

Not applicable

length basis

Not applicable Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,   

Arun Duggal
Chairman

Gurugram 
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Annexure 5

Secretarial Audit Report

To,
The Members,

corporate governance practices by Mangalore Chemicals & 

st

 

st

 

1. 
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2. General Laws

risk that threaten the e

 
 th               Company Secretary

‘Annexure-A’

To,
The Members,

appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

relating to appropriateness of Books of Account, Financial 

 

 
 th               Company Secretary
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
A.  Power and Fuel Consumption

Sl. 
No.

Description Unit
Current

Year
2016-17

Previous
Year

2015-16

1. Electricity

A. Purchased Units 166.90

 1250.39

Charges
 116.36

6.79

B. Own Generation

Through Generator

Units 2401.95

Units per litre of furnace 
oil

4.18

Unit Cost 6.65

Furnace Oil kl 57399.79

Total Amount  11,785.23

Average Rate 20,531.84

B.  Consumption per unit of Production

Products (with details) Unit
Current

Year
2016-17

Previous
Year

2015-16

Kwh 635.26

Kwh 44

Kwh 41.5

kl 0.040

kl 0.004

kl 0.006

Annexure 6
Conservation of Energy, Research and Development & Technology Absorption, 

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

A.  Research and Development

in which R&D 

out by the 
Company

 

reactor

as a result of 
the above R 
& D equipment & spares

Future plan of 
action

R&D

B. Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

Efforts, in brief, 

technology 
absorption, 

innovation

result of the 
above efforts 

improvement, 

import 
substitution 

Operational safety

In case of 

technology 
following 
information 
may be 

Not applicable

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO 2016-17
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Annexure 7

Corporate Governance Report

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name of Director Category@ No. of
Directorships 

in other
companies* 

as on
31-03-2017

No. of
Board

Meetings
Attended

No. of 
shares 
held

Attendance 
at previous 

Annual 
General 
Meeting

No. of Board
Committees of other 
companies** as on

31-03-2017
Chairman Member

Nil No
Arun Duggal Nil Yes
D A Prasanna # ID Nil No
Kapil Mehan % NED Nil Yes

WTD Nil Yes
MD Nil Yes

ID Nil Yes
Pratap Narayan ID Nil No
Ritu Mallya! Nil No

$ NA Nil No
& NA Nil Yes 

 Independent Directors’ Familiarization Programme

website 

 Independent Directors’ Meeting:
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3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

 

Name of the Director Status No. of meetings 
attended

Pratap Narayan Chairman
Arun Duggal Member

Member
D A Prasanna@ Member
Kapil Mehan% Member

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

 

 

Name of the Director Status No. of meetings 
attended

Pratap Narayan@ Chairman Nil
D A Prasanna& Chairman

Member
Kapil Mehan% Member

 Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors
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5. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

 

(Rs. in lakhs)

Name of the Director Salary Sitting 
fees

Perquisites Stock 
Options

Bonus Retirement Terms of service contract

Arun Duggal  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil 

N Suresh Krishnan  Nil NA  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil 

notice by either party
 Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil Director liable to retire by rotation

Ritu Mallya!  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil Director not liable to retire by rotation
Kapil Mehan%  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil Director liable to retire by rotation
D A Prasanna# Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil 

Pratap Narayan  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil 

 Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil 

NA  Nil Nil

notice by either party
 Nil Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil Director liable to retire by rotation
 Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil Director not liable to retire by rotation

6. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

 

Name of the Director Status No. of meetings 
attended

Chairman
D A Prasanna& Member

Member

7. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING
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8. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

9. GENERAL MEETINGS

Date Time Venue Special Resolutions Passed
st  

st None

Approval of borrowing powers as 

Special Resolutions passed through Postal Ballot

10. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

 

11. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

a. Annual General Meeting 
September 25, 2017 at 10.00 AM  

b. Financial Year 

Quarter 

c. Book closure dates: 

d. Dividend payment date: 

e. Listing on the Stock Exchanges

f. Stock Code 
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g. Market Price Data

Month & Year
BSE NSE

High Low High Low

& 

h. Performance in comparison to BSE Sensex and Nifty 50

 

 
 
 

i. The securities were not suspended from trading during the year.  

j. Registrars and Share Transfer Agents

k. Share Transfer System

l. Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2017

Category No. of Shareholders No. of Equity Shares % of shareholding 
Promoters
Banks, FIs, Insurance Companies 
FIIs

Others
Grand Total 56,402 11,85,15,150 100.00
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Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2017

No. of Shareholders No. of Equity Shares %

Total 56,402 11,85,15,150 100.00

m. Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity

n. The Company has not issued GDRs/ADRs/Warrants and Convertible Instruments.  

o. Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities.  

p. Plant location:

q. Address for Correspondence

 

12. OTHER DISCLOSURES
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Declaration regarding compliance with Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

                   N. Suresh Krishnan

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited,

For K. P. RAO & CO.,

Desmond J Rebello
Partner
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Management Discussion & Analysis

Industry Structure and Developments

Threats and Opportunities

 

 

pla

The GOI  
 
 

Future Outlook  

Annexure 8
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certain local manufacturers of fertilizers, to augment total fertilizer 

availability in our marketing territory through our own marketing 

 

Financial and Operational Performance

a) Production Performance

 

b) Operating Results

 

 

 

c) Resource Utilization

  

 

d) Working Capital

 

Risks and Concerns

Internal Control Systems

Human Resources and Industrial Relations
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To 

THE MEMBERS OF MANGALORE CHEMICALS AND 
FERTILIZERS LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

of Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited (“the 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial 
Statements

Auditor’s responsibility

Opinion

Other matter
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

 
 

        

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Name of
the Statute

Nature of
the dues

Amount
(Rs. 

Lakhs)

Forum in which
dispute is pending

ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MANGALORE CHEMICALS AND FERTILIZERS LIMITED
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MANGALORE CHEMICALS AND FERTILIZERS LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)

reporting of Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

Auditors’ Responsibility

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting

Opinion
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2017
(Rs. in lakhs) 

For K. P. Rao & Co.  Arun Duggal N. Suresh Krishnan K. Prabhakar Rao 
Chartered Accountants  Chairman Managing Director Director - Works 
Firm Regn. No. 003135S

Desmond J Rebello     Vijayamahantesh Khannur T. M. Muralidharan
Partner Company Secretary Vice President – Finance
Membership No. 015140

Gurgaon  
May 18, 2017 

Particulars Note
No.

As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2016

As at
01.04.2015

I ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 3 624,74.53 642,52.90 622,28.83
Capital Work-in-Progress 3 13,57.01 13,17.91 9,25.93
Intangible Assets 4  29.25  36.18  21.81 
Financial Assets
     (i) Investments 5  -  - 200,00.00
     (ii) Loans 5 6,30.05 6,61.51 6,45.12
     (iii) Others 5  -  2.58  2.58 
Other Assets 6 3,24.67  72.31 5,57.98
Tax Assets (Net)  13.83  258.40  58.85 

(2) Current assets
Inventories 7 259,78.76 233,05.37 329,39.37
Financial Assets
     (i) Trade Receivables 8 587,94.77 485,85.15 235,50.73
     (ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 58,92.32 3,99.19 13,60.77
     (iii) Other Bank Balances 10 6,47.66 7,13.13 18,16.49
     (iv) Others 5 680,65.31 1044,06.80 897,22.63
Other Assets 6 18,52.83 13,34.24 34,94.11

Total Assets 2260,60.99 2453,45.67 2373,25.20

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity

Share Capital 11 118,54.87 118,54.87 118,54.87
Other Equity 12 305,48.62 285,96.51 536,22.91

LIABILITIES
(1) Non-current liabilities

Financial Liabilities
     (i) Borrowings 13 99,57.50 124,28.83 184,36.38
     (ii) Others 15 16,39.10 11,79.22 21,72.65
Provisions 17 22,26.92 19,17.52 18,31.07
Deferred Tax Liabilities(Net) 18 16,67.18 12,71.12 21,45.22

(2) Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
     (i) Borrowings 13 1059,93.50 1196,40.14 856,48.55
     (ii) Trade Payables 14 448,29.41 523,04.66 502,65.09
     (iii) Others 15 166,26.63 149,64.18 104,30.84
Other Liabilities 16 5,73.81 8,91.32 7,07.85
Provisions 17 1,43.45 2,97.30 2,09.77

Total Equity and Liabilities 2260,60.99 2453,45.67 2373,25.20

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
(Rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars Note
No.

Year ended
31.03.2017

Year ended 
31.03.2016

I REVENUE
Revenue from Operations 19 2502,14.23 2982,07.12
Other Income 20 9,72.25 6,28.50
Total Revenue (I) 2511,86.48 2988,35.62

II EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed 21 1087,82.43 1180,08.92
Purchases of Stock in Trade 22 686,38.78 934,87.06
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work in Progress 23 (7,21.77) 104,72.17
Excise Duty on Sale of Goods 14,66.90 12,97.90

24 68,73.03 67,97.57
Finance Costs 25 118,24.40 114,73.96
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 35,26.65 32,31.89
Other Expenses 26 477,84.14 572,06.09
Total expenses (II) 2481,74.56 3019,75.56

III 30,11.92 (31,39.94)
IV Exceptional Items 39  - 216,68.20
V 30,11.92 (248,08.14)
VI Tax Expense:

(1)  Current Tax 18  - (4.64)
       MAT  6,80.00
       MAT Credit Entitlement (6,80.00)
(2)  Deferred Tax 18 10,70.45 (7,90.63)

VII 19,41.47 (240,12.87)

VIII Other Comprehensive Income  10.64 (1,57.68)
 -  - 

 16.27 (2,41.13)
Income Tax Effect 18 (5.63)  83.45 

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII + VIII) 19,52.11 (241,70.55)

X Earnings per Equity Share:
(1) Basic 28  1.64 (20.26)
(2) Diluted 28  1.64 (20.26)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

For K. P. Rao & Co.  Arun Duggal N. Suresh Krishnan K. Prabhakar Rao 
Chartered Accountants  Chairman Managing Director Director - Works 
Firm Regn. No. 003135S

Desmond J Rebello     Vijayamahantesh Khannur T. M. Muralidharan
Partner Company Secretary Vice President – Finance
Membership No. 015140

Gurgaon  
May 18, 2017 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
(Rs. in lakhs) 

For K. P. Rao & Co.  Arun Duggal N. Suresh Krishnan K. Prabhakar Rao 
Chartered Accountants  Chairman Managing Director Director - Works 
Firm Regn. No. 003135S

Desmond J Rebello     Vijayamahantesh Khannur T. M. Muralidharan
Partner Company Secretary Vice President – Finance
Membership No. 015140

Gurgaon  
May 18, 2017 

Particulars
For the period

ended
31 March 2017

For the period
ended

31 March 2016

A Cash Flow from Operating Activities

1  30,11.92  (248,08.14)

2 Adjustments for :
Depreciation  35,26.65  32,31.89 

 118,24.40  114,73.96 
Fixed Assets Written-off  68.07  2,86.66 
Foreign Exchange Variation (net)

 (30.13)  (4.73)
 (7,20.61)  (2,42.31)

Provision for Doubtful Loans and Advances  -  16,68.20 
Provision for Diminution in Value of Investment  -  200,00.00 

 19,74.94  (8,62.28)
 16.27  (2,41.13)

Others

3  196,71.51  105,02.12 
Adjustment for :
Trade & Other Receivables  256,80.67  (380,29.82)
Inventories  (26,73.39)  96,34.00 
Trade and Other Payables  (53,90.44)  44,69.03 
Change in Working Capital  176,16.85  (239,26.79)

4  372,88.36  (134,24.67)

5 Less : Income Tax paid  (4,35.43)  (1,94.90)

6 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities  368,52.93  (136,19.57)

B Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of Fixed Assets  (20,44.16)  (53,75.98)
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets  38.33  45.82 
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities  (20,05.83)  (53,30.16)

C Cash Flow From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Long-Term Bank Borrowings  28,97.05  10,65.03 
Repayments of Short-Term Bank Borrowings  (136,46.64)  339,91.58 
Repayment of Long Term Bank Borrowings  (76,90.29)  (48,46.64)
Dividend paid including Distribution Tax  -  (8,55.85)
Interest Received  7,20.61  2,42.31 
Interest and Financial Charges paid  (116,34.70)  (116,08.28)
Net Cash Used from Financing Activities  (293,53.97)  179,88.15 

D Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  54,93.13  (9,61.58)

E - 1 Opening balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents  3,99.19  13,60.77 
E - 2 Closing balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents  58,92.32  3,99.19 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
(Rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars
(a) Equity Share Capital

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid Numbers Amount
At 1 April 2015 118,515,150.00 118,54.87
At 31 March 2016 118,515,150.00 118,54.87
Issue of Share Capital (Note 11)  -  - 
At 31 March 2017 118,515,150.00 118,54.87

(b) Other Equity
For the Year Ended 31 March 2017:

Particulars

Reserves and surplus

Revaluation 
Reserve Total

Surplus in the 
statement of General 

Reserve
Capital
Reserve

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve

(Note 12) (Note 12) (Note 12) (Note 12) (Note 12)
 
As at 1 April 2016 166,41.29 53,54.72  16.84 4,80.78 61,02.88 285,96.51

19,41.47  -  -  -  - 19,41.47
Other Comprehensive Income  10.64  -  -  -  -  10.64 
Total Comprehensive Income 185,93.40 53,54.72  16.84 4,80.78 61,02.88 305,48.62
Transfer from Revaluation Reserve to General Reserve  -  30.99  -  - (30.99)  - 
Cash Dividends (Note 27)  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Dividend Distribution Tax (DDT)  -  -  -  -  -  - 
At 31 March 2017 185,93.40 53,85.71  16.84 4,80.78 60,71.89 305,48.62

For the Year Ended 31 March 2016:

Particulars

Reserves and surplus
Revaluation 

reserve 

Total
Surplus in the 
statement of 

General 
reserve

Capital reserve Capital 
redemption 

reserve
(Note 12) (Note 12) (Note 12) (Note 12) (Note 12)

 
As at 1 April 2015 416,67.69 53,04.91  16.84 4,80.78 61,52.69 536,22.91

(240,12.87)  -  -  -  - (240,12.87)
Other Comprehensive Income (1,57.68)  -  -  -  - (1,57.68)
Total Comprehensive Income 174,97.14 53,04.91  16.84 4,80.78 61,52.69 294,52.36
Transfer from Revaluation Reserve to General Reserve  49.81  -  - (49.81)  - 
Cash Dividends (Note 27) (7,11.09)  -  -  -  - (7,11.09)
Dividend Distribution Tax (DDT) (1,44.76)  -  -  -  - (1,44.76)
At 31 March 2016 166,41.29 53,54.72  16.84 4,80.78 61,02.88 285,96.51

For K. P. Rao & Co.  Arun Duggal N. Suresh Krishnan K. Prabhakar Rao 
Chartered Accountants  Chairman Managing Director Director - Works 
Firm Regn. No. 003135S

Desmond J Rebello     Vijayamahantesh Khannur T. M. Muralidharan
Partner Company Secretary Vice President – Finance
Membership No. 015140

Gurgaon  
May 18, 2017 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Corporate Information

The company is a public company domiciled in India and is 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable 
in India. Its shares are listed on BSE Limited and National Stock 

is located at Level 11, UB Tower, UB City, 24, Vittal Mallya Road, 
Bengaluru – 560 001.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacture, 
purchase and sale of fertilizers 

Information on other related party relationships of the Company 
is provided in Note 36. 

with a resolution of the directors on 18th May 2017.

prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 

Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standard) (Amendment) Rules, 2016. 

  For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 

the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together 
with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer to note 40 
for information on how the Company adopted Ind AS.

basis and under the historical cost basis, except for the 
following assets and liabilities which have been measured 
at fair value:

values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs (INR 00,000), 
except when otherwise indicated

  Assets and Liabilities in the Balance Sheet have been 

requirements of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 

a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale 
or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating 
cycle; or

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or

c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after 
the reporting date; or

d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from 
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting date.

a) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal 
operating cycle; or 

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or 

c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the 
reporting date; or 

d) the Company does not have an unconditional right 
to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting date.

current assets and liabilities.

   An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of 
assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash 
equivalents.

iii) Foreign Currency Translation

  Functional and presentation currency 

Company are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates 

presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.), which is Company’s 
functional and presentation currency.

  Initial recognition

  Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the 
functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency 
amount the exchange rate between the functional currency 
and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

  Conversion

  Foreign currency monetary items (such as cash, 
receivables, payables etc.) are translated using the 
exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. 

  Exchange differences

  Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation 
of monetary items are recognized in the statement of 
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  Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign 

initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a 
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 
re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting 

value is negative.

  Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value 

v)  Property, plant and equipment [PPE]

  On transition to Ind AS i.e. April 01, 2015, the Company 
has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its 
property, plant and equipment (PPE) recognized as at April 
01, 2015 measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that 
carrying value as the deemed cost of the PPE.

  PPE are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation 

comprises purchase price, freight, duties, taxes, borrowing 
costs if recognition criteria are met, and other directly 
attributable costs incurred to bring the asset to its working 
condition for its intended use. 

  The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall 
be recognized as an asset if, and only if:

(b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

  Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added 

the existing PPE beyond its previously assessed standard 
of performance. Such cost includes the cost of replacing 

of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at 
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based 

as inventories.

  Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of the assets 
are measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 

asset is derecognized.

vi)  Depreciation and Amortization on PPE

  Depreciation on PPE is calculated on a straight line basis 
using the rates arrived at, based on the useful lives 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

estimated by the management which are equal to the 

other than the cases as mentioned in table below where 
the useful lives are different from those prescribed in 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management 
believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and 

assets are likely to be used. A major portion of the plant 
and equipment of the Company has been considered as 
continuous process plant.

Particulars
Useful life estimated 
by the management 

(years)
Plant & machinery  
(non-continuous process 
plant) & equipment

 5 to 20

  The residual values, useful lives and methods of 

end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

vii)  Intangible assets

  Intangibles represent software. The management of the 

cost of software is amortized over their estimated useful 
life on straight line basis. 

  The amortization period and the amortization method for 

least at the end of each reporting period. If the expected 

previous estimates, the amortization period is changed 

pattern. 

  Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible 
asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 

when the asset is derecognized.

  On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to 
continue with the carrying value of all of intangible assets 
recognized as at April 01, 2015 measured as per the 
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed 
cost.

recognized in the event of changes and circumstances 
indicating that the carrying amount of an asset is not 
recoverable. Difference between the carrying amount of 
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statement in the year of impairment. 

ix) Leases

or an operating lease. 

  A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards 

commencement of the lease, at the inception date fair 
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present 
value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments 

of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of 
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance 

to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized 
in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the 
borrowing costs (See note 30A). Contingent rentals are 
recognized as expenses in the periods in which they are 
incurred.

  Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all 

and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

x) Financial Instruments

equity instrument of another entity.

  Financial assets

  Initial recognition and measurement

  Subsequent measurement

  Debt Instruments-

  Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends 
on the Company’s business model for managing the asset 

purposes of subsequent measurement, debt instruments 

-  Debt instruments at amortized cost;

-  Debt instruments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

(FVTPL).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

  Debt instruments at amortized cost

  A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if 
both the following conditions are met:

a)  The asset is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual 

 and

principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount 
outstanding.

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of 

applies to trade and other receivables.

  Financial liabilities

  Initial recognition and measurement

and borrowings, payables as appropriate.

and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net 
of directly attributable transaction costs.

  Subsequent measurement

loss

liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value 

held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of 
repurchasing in the near term. 

  Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

  Loans and borrowings

  After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in 

as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of 

applies to borrowings. 

  De-recognition

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a 
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 
to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

xi)  Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise 
cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with 
an original maturity of three months or less, which are 

xii)  Dividend to equity holders of the Company

  The Company recognizes a liability to make dividend 
distributions to equity holders of the Company when the 
distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer 
at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws 
in India, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by 
the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognized 
directly in equity.

xiii) Inventories

  Inventories are valued at the lower of Cost and Net 
Realizable Value.

  The Cost is determined as follows:
a. Stores and spares, Fuel Oil, Raw Materials and Packing 

Materials: Moving weighted average method
b. Work-in-progress: Material cost on moving weighted 

average method and appropriate manufacturing 
overheads based on normal operating capacity.

c. Finished goods (manufactured): Material cost on 
moving weighted average method and appropriate 
manufacturing overheads based on normal operating 
capacity including Excise Duty.

d. Traded Goods: Moving weighted average method.

  The cost of inventories comprise all costs of purchase, 
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing 
the inventories to their present location and condition.

  Materials and other items held for use in the production of 

products in which they will be incorporated are expected 
to be sold at or above cost.

  Net Realizable Value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 
sale.

xiv) Borrowing Costs

  Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are 
capitalized to the extent they relate to the period till such 
assets are ready to be put to use. A qualifying asset is 
one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get 
ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are 

incurred.

  Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary 
costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of 
borrowings.

xv) Revenue Recognition

  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that 

revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the 
payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable, taking 

and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the 
government. 

  Sale of goods

  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that 

revenue can be reliably measured.

  Revenue from sale of goods, including concession in 
respect of Urea, DAP, MOP and Complex Fertilizers 
receivable from the Government of India under the 

of ownership of the goods have passed to the customers. 
The Company collects sales taxes and value added taxes 
(VAT) on behalf of the government and, therefore, these 

they are excluded from revenue. Excise Duty deducted 
from turnover (gross) is the amount that is included in the 
amount of turnover (gross) and not the entire amount of 
liability assessed during the year. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

  Claims receivable on account of interest from dealers on 
delayed payments and insurance are accounted for to the 
extent the Company is reasonably certain of their ultimate 
collection.

  Other interest income is recognized on a time proportion 
basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the 
rate applicable.

  Government grants and subsidies

  Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized 

subsidy will be received and all attaching conditions will be 
complied with.

  When the grant or subsidy relates to an expenses item, 
it is recognized as income over the periods necessary to 
match them on a systematic basis to the costs, which it is 
intended to compensate.

  Where the grant or subsidy relates to an asset, its value is 
deducted from the gross value of the asset concerned in 
arriving at the carrying amount of the related asset.

  Provident Fund

eligible employees. Contribution made to provident fund is 

  Gratuity

under the appropriate schemes of the Life Insurance 
Corporation of India. Liability is charged to statement of 

unit credit method] carried out at the balance sheet date, 
by an independent Actuary.

  Leave encashment

unfunded, determined and recognized at the balance 
sheet date in the accounts as per the actuarial valuation. 

Superannuation 

is administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India. The 
contributions to the said scheme are charged to statement 

  Expenditure incurred on payment made to employees 
under Voluntary Retirement Scheme (VRS) is charged to 

  Re-measurements

  Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 

recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in 
other comprehensive income and such re-measurement 

and loss in the subsequent periods. They are included in 
retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity 
and in the balance sheet.

loss on the earlier of the date of the plan amendment or 
curtailment, and the date that the Company recognizes 
the related restructuring costs.

  Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to 

xvii) Income Taxes

  Tax expense comprises current income tax and deferred tax. 
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected 
to be paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with 
the Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws 
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted 
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

  Current income tax relating to items recognized outside 

in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current 
tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying 

directly in equity. 

   Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on 
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets    

reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

  Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible 
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are 
recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable 

temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused 
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed 
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed 
at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent 

allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset 
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and 
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
at the reporting date.
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comprehensive income or in equity). 

  Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset 
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities.

xviii) Earnings per share

  Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the 

shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year.

loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and 
the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the year, are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive 
Potential Equity Shares.

xix) Contingent assets and liabilities

  A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises 
from past events and the existence of which will be 

one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the enterprise

  A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from 

by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the enterprise.

xx) Provisions 

  A provision is recognized when the Company has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, 

and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is 
material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax 

the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a 

assumptions

requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities, the accompanying disclosures 

and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about 
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes 
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

a) Income Taxes

  Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses 

be available against which the losses can be utilized. 

the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, 
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable 

actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions 
that may differ from actual developments in the future. 
These include the determination of the discount rate, 
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the 
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term 

to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are 
reviewed at each reporting date.

  The parameter most subject to change is the discount 
rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for 

interest rates of government bonds.

  The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality 
tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at 
interval in response to demographic changes. Future 

are given in note 34.

liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be 
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their 
fair value is measured using valuation techniques including 
the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken 
from observable markets where ever possible, but where 
this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in 
establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations 
of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect 

37 for further disclosures.
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GROSS BLOCK (At Cost or Valuation) DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT NET BLOCK

As at 
1 April 2016 Additions Disposals/ 

Deductions Adjusments
As at 

31 March 
2017

As at 
1 April
 2016

For the
Year Deductions

Upto 
31 March 

2017

As at 
31 March 

2017

Freehold Land 68,67.78  -    -   68,67.78  -    -    -    -   68,67.78

Leasehold Land (a) 3.04  -   3.04  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Buildings 66,54.35 1,37.68 4.52 67,87.51 24,97.19 1,54.59 1.02 26,50.76 41,36.75

Railway Sidings 7,03.15  -    -   7,03.15 2,49.27 46.22  -   2,95.49 4,07.66

Roads, Drainage and Culverts 6,45.80  16.61  -   6,62.41 3,71.85 55.54  -   4,27.39 2,35.02

Plant and Machinery 862,75.82 15,90.57 1,61.71 877,04.68 351,74.01 30,17.04 1,13.10 380,77.95 496,26.73

Electrical Installations and Fittings 3,28.63  -    -   3,28.63 1,02.31 30.44  -   1,32.75 1,95.88

Equipment 17,61.28 57.49 55.81 17,62.96 9,61.00 1,37.95  53.12 10,45.83 7,17.13

Cranes and Locomotives 3,04.97  -    -   3,04.97 1,73.15 13.31  -   1,86.46 1,18.51

Furniture and Fixtures 6,20.38 6.18 38.76 5,87.80 4,01.51 66.17 34.30 4,33.38 1,54.42

Vehicles - Owned 75.13 9.11 26.85 57.39 65.85 2.39 25.50 42.74 14.65

              - Leased 1,50.40  -   1,50.40  -   1,41.69 1.20 1,42.89  -    -   

Others 2.83 2.83  -   2.83  -   2.83  -    -   

TOTAL 1043,93.56 18,17.64 4,43.92  -   1057,67.28 401,40.66 35,24.85 3,72.76 432,92.75 624,74.53
Capital Work-in-Progress 13,17.91 18,56.74 18,17.64 13,57.01 13,57.01

GROSS BLOCK (At Cost or Valuation) DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT NET BLOCK

As at 
1 April 2015 Additions Disposals/ 

Deductions Adjusments
As at 

31 March 
2016

As at 
1 April
 2015

For the
Year Deductions

Upto 
31 March 

2016

As at 
31 March 

2016

Freehold Land 68,67.78  -    -   68,67.78  -    -    -    -   68,67.78

Leasehold Land (a) 3.04  -    -   3.04  -    -    -    -   3.04

Buildings 63,20.22 3,56.22  22.09 66,54.35 23,77.82 1,27.28 7.91 24,97.19 41,57.16

Railway Sidings 7,03.15  -    -   7,03.15 2,02.74 46.53  -   2,49.27 4,53.88

Roads, Drainage and Culverts 5,93.25  52.55  -   6,45.80 3,04.99 66.86  -   3,71.85 2,73.95

Plant and Machinery 827,69.32 47,24.64 12,18.14 862,75.82 334,24.39 27,14.17 9,64.55 351,74.01 511,01.81

Electrical Installations and Fittings 1,78.29 1,56.19 5.85 3,28.63 91.50 16.36 5.55 1,02.31 2,26.32

Equipment 15,19.85 2,64.81 23.38 17,61.28 8,44.38 1,38.42 21.80 9,61.00 8,00.28

Cranes and Locomotives 3,12.89  -   7.92 3,04.97 1,58.43 22.23 7.51 1,73.15 1,31.82

Furniture and Fixtures 6,15.12 15.23 9.97 6,20.38 3,40.26 70.87 9.62 4,01.51 2,18.87

Vehicles - Owned 1,33.30  -   58.17 75.13 68.44 8.05 10.64 65.85 9.28

              - Leased 1,50.40  -    -   1,50.40 1,24.83  16.86  -   1,41.69 8.71

Others 2.83    -    -   2.83 2.83  -    -   2.83  -   

TOTAL 1001,69.44 55,69.64 13,45.52  -   1043,93.56 379,40.61 32,27.63 10,27.58 401,40.66 642,52.90
Capital Work-in-Progress 9,25.93 59,90.05 55,98.07 13,17.91 13,17.91

(a) Leasehold land of Rs. 3.04 Lakhs is towards 3.041 acres taken on lease from the New Mangaluru Port Trust.    

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
                   (Rs. in lakhs)
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4.   INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Rs. in lakhs)

GROSS BLOCK (At Cost or Valuation) DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT    NET BLOCK

As at 
1 April 2016

Additions Disposals/ 
Deductions

As at 
31 March 2017

As at 
1 April 2016

For the Year Deductions  Upto 
31 March 2017

As at 
31 March 2017

Computer Software 1,84.11  - 1,02.44  81.67 1,47.93  1.80  97.31  52.42  29.25 

    Total  1,84.11  - 1,02.44  81.67 1,47.93  1.80  97.31  52.42  29.25 

GROSS BLOCK (At Cost or Valuation) DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT    NET BLOCK

As at 
1 April 2015

Additions Disposals/ 
Deductions

As at 
31 March 2016

As at 
1 April 2015

For the Year Deductions  Upto 
31 March 2016

As at 
31 March 2016

Computer Software 3,51.85  28.43 1,96.17 1,84.11 3,30.04  4.26  186.37  147.93  36.18 

    Total  3,51.85  28.43 1,96.17 1,84.11 3,30.04  4.26  186.37  147.93  36.18 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

5. Financial assets
Non Current Current

31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015

Investments in Preference Shares
(Unquoted)

loss
Bangalore Beverages Limited 200,00.00 200,00.00 200,00.00

(2,00,000 Redeemable cumulative preference 

p.a. repayable after 20 years)

Less:- Provision for Impairment in the value of 
investment

200,00.00 200,00.00

TOTAL  -  - 200,00.00

Loans (at amortised cost)
Security Deposits 
Unsecured, considered good 6,30.05 6,61.51 6,45.12

6,30.05 6,61.51 6,45.12

Other Financial assets
Deposits with Banks (at Amortised cost)  -  2.58  2.58 

Concession Receivable from Government of India 679,15.99 1042,75.69 888,71.23

Other Receivables 1,49.32 1,31.11 8,51.40

TOTAL  -  2.58  2.58 680,65.31 1044,06.80 897,22.63
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6. OTHER ASSETS (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars
Non-Current Current

As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2016

As at 
01.04.2015

As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2016

As at 
01.04.2015

Capital Advances
Unsecured, Considered Good 3,23.85  71.56 5,52.72  -  -  - 

Advances (other than capital advances):

Unsecured, Considered Good  -  -  - 16,89.44 13,14.08 34,75.75
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful 16,68.20 16,68.20  - 

Total 33,57.64 29,82.28 34,75.75
Less: Provision for Doubtful Loans and Advances 16,68.20 16,68.20  - 

Total 16,89.44 13,14.08 34,75.75
Balance with Customs, Port Trust, Excise and Commer-
cial Tax Authorities

 -  -  - 1,62.87 15.59 10.15

Prepaid Rent 0.82 0.75 5.25 0.52 4.57 8.21
Total 3,24.67  72.31 5,57.98 18,52.83 13,34.24 34,94.11

7. INVENTORIES

Particulars As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2016

As at 
01.04.2015

a)    Raw Materials (Includes in-transit Rs. 54,10.99 lakhs, 31 March 2016 Rs. 23,90.71 lakhs,  
1 April 2015, Rs. 40,41.87 lakhs)

124,45.13 95,53.13 94,99.28

b)    Work-in-Progress 39.79 21.50 1,81.46
c)    Finished Goods 9,45.50 4,74.38 9,05.22
d)    Stock-in-Trade (Includes in-transit Rs. -Nil- lakhs, 31 March 2016, Rs. 34,10.33 lakhs,  

1 April 2015 Rs. 133,98.62 lakhs)
63,92.97 61,60.61 160,93.27

e)    Stores and Spares (Includes in-transit Rs. 1,56.28 lakhs, 31 March 2016 Rs. 24,20.64 lakhs,  
1 April 2015 Rs. 21,98.73 lakhs)

61,55.37 70,95.75 62,60.14

Total 259,78.76 233,05.37 329,39.37

8. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2016

As at 
01.04.2015

Trade Receivables - Related Parties 20,36.69  64.69  -   
Trade Receivables - Others 567,58.08 485,20.46 235,50.73
Total Trade Receivables 587,94.77 485,85.15 235,50.73
Break-up for Security details:
From Related Parties
Secured, Considered Good  -    -    -   
Unsecured, Considered Good 20,36.69  64.69  -   
From Others
Secured, Considered Good 18,62.94 24,57.64 19,93.26
Unsecured, Considered Good 548,95.14 460,62.82 215,57.47
Total 587,94.77 485,85.15 235,50.73

or a member.
Trade Receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 120 days.
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9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2016

As at 
01.04.2015

Balances with Banks
On Current Accounts 58,76.10 3,94.13 13,35.25
Cheques, Drafts in hand 13.55 3.20 22.37
Cash on hand 2.67 1.86 3.15
Total 58,92.32 3,99.19 13,60.77

10. OTHER BANK BALANCES

Particulars As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2016

As at 
01.04.2015

Other Bank Balances
Bank Deposits  2.58  -    -   
Unclaimed Dividend 3,80.08 4,12.13 3,06.49
Margin Money Deposits 2,65.00 3,01.00 15,10.00
Total 6,47.66 7,13.13 18,16.49

11. SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2016

As at 
01.04.2015

Authorised 
12,40,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 124,00.00 124,00.00 124,00.00

6,00.00 6,00.00 6,00.00
130,00.00 130,00.00 130,00.00

Issued :
12,00,00,044 (31st March 2016: 12,00,00,044) Equity Shares of Rs. 120,00.00 120,00.00 120,00.00

Subscribed and Paid-up *
11,85,15,150 (31st March 2016: 11,85,15,150) Equity Shares of Rs. 118,51.52 118,51.52 118,51.52
Forfeited Shares (amount originally paid-up)  3.35  3.35  3.35 
Total 118,54.87 118,54.87 118,54.87

a. Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

Particulars
As at 31.03.2017  As at 31.03.2016  As at 01.04.2015 

In Numbers Rs. in lakhs In Numbers Rs. in lakhs In Numbers Rs. in lakhs

Equity Shares
At the beginning of the year  11,85,15,150  11,851.52  11,85,15,150  11,851.52  11,85,15,150  11,851.52 
Issued during the year  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Outstanding at the end of the year  11,85,15,150  11,851.52  11,85,15,150  11,851.52  11,85,15,150  11,851.52 

b. Terms / rights attached to Equity Shares

share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend if proposed by the Board of Directors, is 
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in the case of interim dividend. In the 
event of liquidation, the equity  shareholders  are  eligible  to receive  the remaining  assets  of   the  Company  after  distribution  
of   all preferential amounts, in proportion to their holdings. 

c. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares in the Company  
As at 31.03.2017  As at 31.03.2016  As at 01.04.2015 

No. of Shares 
held

% Holding 
in Class

No. of Shares 
held Class

No. of Shares 
held Class

 1,78,36,068  15.05  1,78,36,068  15.05  1,78,36,068  15.05 
Zuari Fertilizers and Chemicals Limited  6,28,43,211  53.03  6,28,43,211  53.03  1,95,14,211  16.47 
SCM Soilfert Limited  -    -    3,37,49,623  28.48 
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12. OTHER EQUITY
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2016

Capital Reserves
16.84 16.84

Closing Balance 16.84 16.84

Capital Redemption Reserve
4,80.78 4,80.78

Closing Balance 4,80.78 4,80.78

Revaluation Reserve
61,02.89 61,52.69

Transfer to General Reserve 30.99 49.81
60,71.90 61,02.89

General Reserve
53,54.72 53,04.91

Add: Transfer from Revaluation Reserve 30.99 49.81
Closing Balance 53,85.71 53,54.72

Surplus 
166,41.28 416,67.69

19,52.11 (241,70.55)
185,93.39 174,97.14

Less : Appropriations
Dividend declared and paid  - 7,11.09
Dividend distribution tax  - 1,44.76

 - 8,55.85

185,93.39 166,41.29

Total Reserves and Surplus 305,48.62 285,96.51
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13. BORROWINGS (AT AMORTISED COST)
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
 Non Current  Current 

As at 
31.03.2017

As at
 31.03.2016

As at 
01.04.2015

As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2016

As at 
01.04.2015

From Banks:
Secured
a. Long Term Loans 99,57.50 101,69.97 108,60.89

Terms of Repayment:

p.a.

p.a.
b. Short Term Loans

i) Cash Credit including Demand Loans 57,35.70 473,61.64 342,16.43
ii) Buyers’ Credit 623,97.96 722,78.50 514,32.12
iii) Bill discounted with Bank 94,87.39  -  - 
iv) Other Short Term Loans 273,68.64  -  - 

including work-in-process and raw materials, book debts, outstanding monies, 
receivables, claims, bills, contracts, engagements, securities, investments, 

Unsecured
a. Long Term Loans  - 22,58.86 75,71.83
b. Short Term Loans - Others 10,03.81  -  - 
From Others:
Secured

(Secured by hypothecation of assets acquired under the facility.)
 -  -  3.66 

Total 99,57.50 124,28.83 184,36.38 1059,93.50 1196,40.14 856,48.55
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14. TRADE PAYABLES (AT AMORTISED COST) (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at
31.03.2017

As at  
31.03.2016

As at
01.04.2015

Sundry Creditors:
Dues to Others 258,70.98 308,45.84 502,65.09
Due to Related Parties 189,58.43 214,58.82  - 
Total 448,29.41 523,04.66 502,65.09

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on  30 - 90 day terms
For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer to Note 31

15. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES                                                                                                                                       

Non Current Current
As at 

31.03.2017
As at 

31.03.2016
As at 

01.04.2015
As at 

31.03.2017
As at 

31.03.2016
As at 

01.04.2015
Financial liabilities at fair value through 

Derivatives not designated as hedges 16,39.10 11,79.22 21,72.65 16,76.71 1,31.15 -

16,39.10 11,79.22 21,72.65 16,76.71 1,31.15  -   

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - - - 5,67.51 4,08.31 5,42.60
Current maturity of Long Term Loans - - - 41,27.91 64,49.81 42,27.55

- - -  -    3.66  26.12 
Security Deposits (Unsecured) - - - 28,33.03 33,39.38 30,59.36
Sundry Creditors for Capital Expenditure - - - 4,69.49 4,00.96 2,41.97
Liabilities for Expenses - - - 57,37.88 30,58.98 13,09.89
Employee Liabilities - - - 8,32.39 7,58.17 7,15.23
Unpaid Dividend - - - 3,80.08 4,12.13 3,06.49
Preference Share holder's Accounts - - - 1.63 1.63 1.63

Total Other Financial Liabilities at Amortised cost  -    -    -   149,49.92 148,33.03 104,30.84

Total Other Financial Liabilities 16,39.10 11,79.22 21,72.65 166,26.63 149,64.18 104,30.84

16. OTHER LIABILITIES                                                                                                                                                            

Non Current Current
As at 

31.03.2017
As at 

31.03.2016
As at 

01.04.2015
As at 

31.03.2017
As at 

31.03.2016
As at 

01.04.2015
Statutory Liabilities - - - 5,71.93 8,89.44 7,01.77
Other Payables - - -  1.88 1.88 6.08

Total  -    -    -   5,73.81 8,91.32 7,07.85

17. PROVISIONS                                                                                                                                                                     
Non Current Current

As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2016

As at 
01.04.2015

As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2016

As at 
01.04.2015

Gratuity (Funded) (Refer note 34) 15,09.77 13,85.16 12,89.26  5.94 1,31.36  69.27 

Leave encashment (Funded) (Refer note 34) 7,17.15 5,32.36 5,41.81 1,37.51 1,65.94 1,40.49
Total 22,26.92 19,17.52 18,31.07 1,43.45 2,97.30 2,09.77
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18. Income Tax
(i)

disclosing also the basis on which the applicable tax rate(s) is (are) computed
  (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2017

As at
31.03.2016

As at
01.04.2015

Current Income Tax
In respect of the current period 6,80.00  - 4,00.00
Deferred Tax
In respect of the current period 10,76.06 (8,74.10) (19,25.87)

Tax is applicable as below

Minimum Alternate Tax
30,11.92 (31,39.94) 18,29.07

Add: Depreciation 33,75.24 31,27.44 28,65.57
Add: Interest on Income Tax 1,99.42  - 
Less: Expenses transferred to OCI (16.27)  - 
Less: Depreciation (33,28.440) (30,75.22) (27,93.65)

(61.63)  - 
31,80.24 (30,87.72) 19,00.99

5,88.34  - 3,51.68
Surcharge  70.60  - 35.17
Education Cess  19.77  - 11.61
Tax Payable 6,78.71  - 3,98.46
Rounded off 6,80.00  - 4,00.00

Deferred tax

Particulars As at
01.04.2015

Provided dur-
ing the year

As at
31.03.2016

Provided dur-
ing the year

As at 
31.03.2017

Deferred tax liability:
Related to Fixed Assets 169,61.37 (598.85) 163,62.52 (4,00.06) 159,62.46
Related to borrowings 8,62.07 (451.84) 4,10.23 (1,36.29) 2,73.94
Total deferred tax liability (A) 178,23.44 (1,050.69) 167,72.75 (5,36.35) 162,36.40
Deferred tax assets:
Business Loss and unabsorbed Depreciation 104,94.76 1,02.01 105,96.77 (16,19.23) 89,77.54

6,99.46 (3,39.26) 3,60.20 (53.13) 3,07.07
Other deferred tax assets 7,24.00 60.66 7,84.66 59.95 8,44.61
MAT credit entitlement 37,60.00  - 37,60.00 6,80.00 44,40.00
Total deferred tax assets (B) 156,78.22 (1,76.59) 155,01.63 (9,32.41) 145,69.22
Deferred Tax Liability (Net) (A - B) 21,45.22 (8,74.10) 12,71.12 3,96.06 16,67.18

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the 
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

19. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 
31.03.2016

Sale of Products (including Excise Duty) 
Manufactured Goods
Urea 859,24.60 1027,63.66
Complex Fertilizers 722,05.97 666,93.39
Others 89,89.51 95,94.62

Traded Goods
Complex Fertilizers - Imported 290,64.87 521,67.83
Muriate of Potash - Imported 250,58.94 255,32.91
Others 289,14.40 414,19.55

Sale of Services  55.94  35.16 
Total 2502,14.23 2982,07.12
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Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 
31.03.2016

20 OTHER INCOME
Interest Income 7,20.61 2,42.31
Other Non-Operating Income 2,51.64 3,86.19

Total 9,72.25 6,28.50

21 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
Naphtha 448,92.44 528,32.03
Phosphoric Acid 388,41.79 359,41.90
Imported Ammonia 174,66.52 197,76.86
Others 75,81.68 94,58.14

Total 1087,82.43 1180,08.93

22 PURCHASES OF STOCK IN TRADE
Complex Fertilizers - Imported 239,55.16 339,05.24
Muriate of Potash - Imported 202,36.96 262,65.81
Others 244,46.66 333,16.01

Total 686,38.78 934,87.06

23 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in -Trade and Work-in- Progress
Opening Stock 

 Work-in-Progress 21.50 1,81.46
 Finished Goods 4,74.38 8,53.93
 Stock in Trade 61,60.61 160,93.27

Total 66,56.49 171,28.66

Closing Stock
 Work-in-Progress 39.79 21.50
 Finished Goods 9,45.50 4,74.38
 Stock in Trade 63,92.97 61,60.61

Total 73,78.26 66,56.49
(7,21.77) 104,72.17

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and Wages 56,30.48 55,15.26
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 6,12.89 6,21.56
Staff Welfare Expenses 6,29.66 6,60.75

Total 68,73.03 67,97.57

25 FINANCE COSTS
Interest Expense 70,53.53 81,75.94
Other Borrowing Costs 41,47.64 29,14.37
Others 6,23.23 3,83.65

Total 118,24.40 114,73.96

Total Interest Expenses (calculated using the effective interest method) 

118,24.40 114,73.96
118,24.40 114,73.96
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26 OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 
31.03.2016

Consumption of Stores & Spares 11,68.68 12,43.42
Power, Fuel and Water 179,66.62 207,13.16
Packing Materials Consumed 25,49.45 23,95.62
Bagging and Other Contracting Charges 4,84.14 4,61.50
Transportation 182,53.71 184,65.32
Foreign Exchange Variation (net) (17,44.48) 57,37.77
Repairs and Maintenance 
       Buildings 1,44.15 1,83.27
       Others 4,81.60 4,10.80
       Plant & Machinery 26,50.00 28,08.46
Rent 12,48.38 12,16.24
Rates and Taxes  8.86 12.37
Insurance 4,04.69 6,79.37
Travelling and Conveyance 3,51.55 3,00.34
Loss on Fixed Assets sold / discarded (net)  37.94 2,81.93
Directors' Sitting Fees  24.99 8.31
Payment to Statutory Auditors  29.12 21.93
Excise Duty on Increase/(Decrease) of Inventory  1.39 12.25
Miscellaneous Expenses 17,16.75 29,95.62
CSR Expenditure (Refer note 35)  31.66 1,20.69

19,74.94 (8,62.28)
Total 477,84.14 572,06.09

Payment to Statutory Auditors
As Auditor  12.00  12.00 
For Other Services  16.57  7.85 
For Reimbursement of Expenses  0.55  2.08 

 29.12  21.93 

27
Particulars 31.03.2017 31.03.2016

Cash dividends on Equity shares declared and paid
Dividend for the year ended 31.3.2016 of Rs. Nil, (31.3.2015 - Rs. 0.60) per fully paid share -  711.09 

- 1,44.76
Dividends not recognized at the end of the reporting period

 
(31.3.2016 - NIL).  This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders 
in the ensuing annual general meeting

5,92.58 -

Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend 1,20.63 -
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28 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 
31.03.2016

(INR in lacs)   
19,41.47 (240,12.87)

118,515,150 118,515,150 
Basic and Diluted earnings per share in INR (face value INR 10 per share) 1.64 (20.26)

29 The amount due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as on 31.3.2017 is Nil (Nil).

30 A   Leases
Finance Lease — as Lessee

2. Lease rentals are charged on the basis of agreed terms.
3. Assets are taken on lease over a period of 3/5 years.

Disclosure under Finance Lease as Lessee:

Minimum Lease 
Payments

Future Interest on 
Outstanding

Present Value of Minimum 
Lease Payments

31.03.2017 31.03.2016 31.03.2015 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 31.03.2015 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
- Within one year - 3.71 28.48 - 0.05 2.36 - 3.66 26.12
- After one year but not more - - 3.71 - 0.05 - - 3.66

- - -
Total - 3.71 32.19 - 0.05 2.41 - 3.66 29.78

B

Particulars As at 
31.3.2017

As at 
31.3.2016

As at 
31.3.2015

a. Outstanding Bank Guarantees 23,06.89 6,94.68 7,37.83
b. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt

i) Disputed Customs Duty liability under appeal by Company before CESTAT 90.60 90.60 90.60
ii) Disputed Income-Tax liability 4,69.88 4,27.77 4,27.77
iii) Bonus for 2014-15 pursuant to amendment to Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 6.03 6.03 -

C  Capital and Other  Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
Capital Account not provided for 30,72.16 7,98.79 40,62.30
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

risk. The Company manages market risk through a treasury department which evaluates and exercises control over the entire 
process of market risk management.  The Board of Directors  provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as 

Market risk

instruments.
The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement 

and 31 March 2016.

a.   Interest Rate Risk

in market interest rates.
Interest Rate Sensitivity
The folloWING TABLE demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and 

 Particulars

Increase/ 
Decrease in 
Basis Points

Before Tax

 2016-17  2015-16 

 INR Borrowings  +50  28.45  58.03 
 Euro Borrowings  +50  6.22  5.32 

 INR Borrowings  -50  (28.45)  (58.03)
 Euro Borrowings  -50  (6.22)  (5.32)

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market 
environment.

foreign exchange rates.
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Foreign currency sensitivity 
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rates, with all other variables held 

including non-designated foreign currency derivatives.  

 Particulars

Increase/ 
Decrease in 
Basis Points

Before Tax

 2016-17  2015-16 
USD  +5%  737.82  2,088.60 

  -5%  (737.82)  (2,088.60)
 Euro  +5%  62.32  53.37 

 -5%  (62.32)  (53.37)

c.   Commodity price risk

naphtha and furnace oil as per the extant urea pricing policies.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed, under a 

The Company extends credit to customers in the normal course of business. The Company considers factors such as credit 
track record in the market and past dealings for extending credit to customers. The Company monitors the track record of the 
payments by the customers and the receivables are regularly monitored. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk 
with respect to trade receivables as low, since the customer base is large and located in several jurisdictions and operate in 
largely independent markets. The Company has also taken security deposits from its customers, which mitigate the credit risk 
to some extent.

subsidy. By sovereign nature credit risk is not perceived.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Liquidity risk
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Less than
1 year

1-3 years 3-5 years > 5 years Total

As at 31 March 2017
Borrowings  1,10,121.42  6,099.82  2,764.94  1,094.67  1,20,080.85 
Trade payables  44,829.41  -    -    -    44,829.41 

 10,822.01  -    -    -    10,822.01 
Derivatives and embedded derivatives  1,010.46  586.09  134.87  -    1,731.42 

1,66,783.30 6,685.91 2,899.81 1,094.67 1,77,463.69
As at 31 March 2016
Borrowings  1,25,836.04  8,085.73  3,201.46  1,395.56  1,38,518.79 
Trade payables  52,304.66  -    -    -    52,304.66 

 8,383.21  -    -    -    8,383.21 
Derivatives and embedded derivatives  815.66  787.39  368.44  9.32  1,980.81 

1,87,339.57 8,873.12 3,569.90 1,404.88 2,01,187.47
As at 1 April 2015
Borrowings  91,377.23  15,062.47  -    1,869.56  1,08,309.26 
Trade payables  50,265.09  -    -    -    50,265.09 

 6,203.29  -    -    -    6,203.29 
Derivatives and embedded derivatives  642.76  989.53  586.09  134.87  2,353.25 

1,48,488.37 16,052.00 586.09 2,004.43 1,67,130.89

32 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

returns to the shareholders.
The capital structure of the company is based on management's judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to 
meet its strategic and day to day needs.  The amount of capital is considered in proportion to risk and manage the capital struc-
ture in light of the changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.  In order to maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders 
or issue new shares.

steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust,  its capital structure.

33 DISCLOSURE IN RESPECT OF SPECIFIED BANK NOTES HELD AND TRANSACTED (Rs.)

Particulars
Bank Notes 

(SBNs)

Other de-
nomination 

notes 
& Coins

Total

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 2,51,000 73,346 3,09,346
(+) Permitted receipts  -   
(-)Permitted payments  -   
(-)Amount deposited in Banks 2,51,000
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016  -   

thousand rupees.

The disclosures with respects to ‘Permitted Receipts’, ‘Permitted Payments’, ‘Amount Deposited in Banks’ and ‘Closing Cash in 
Hand as on 30.12.2016’ is understood to be applicable in case of SBNs only.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
(Rs. in lakhs)
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34 POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN (Rs. in lakhs)
GRATUITY

 
The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Amount recognized in the Balance sheet

Particulars As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2016

As at 
01.04.2015

Present value of plan liabilities  19,50.84  19,93.11  17,34.86 
Fair value of plan assets 4,35.13  4,76.58  3,76.33 

15,15.71 15,16.53 13,58.53
Unfunded plans  -  -  - 
Net plan liability / (asset)  15,15.71  15,16.53  13,58.53 

Particulars Year ended 
31.3.2017

Year ended 
31.3.2016

Current Service Cost 1,01.50  81.18 
Past Service Cost  31.66 
Net Interest Cost   1,19.72  1,04.02 

 2,21.22  2,16.86 

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars Year ended 
31.3.2017

Year ended 
31.3.2016

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations (10.88)  2,70.96 
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expenses) (5.39) (29.82)
Net (gain) / loss recognized in Other comprehensive income (16.27) 2,41.14 

Particulars Year ended 
31.3.2017

Year ended 
31.3.2016

 19,93.10  17,34.86 
Current service cost 1,01.50  81.18 
Interest cost  1,57.34  1,20.20 
Actuarial (gain)/ loss (10.88)  2,70.95 
Past Service Cost  -  31.66 

(2,90.23) (2,45.75)
 19,50.83  19,93.10 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
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Changes in the fair value of plan  assets

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Fair value of plan assets (Opening)  4,76.58  3,76.33 
Interest on plan asset  37.62  16.18 
Remeasurement
Expected Return on plan asset  5.39  29.82 
Actuarial (gain)/ loss 
Contribution by Employer  2,05.77  3,00.00 

(2,90.23) (2,45.75)
Closing  fair value of plan  assets     4,35.13  4,76.58 

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Investment with  insurer (Life  Insurance Corporation  of  India)  4,35.13  4,76.58 

Particulars Gratuity
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Discount rate (in %) 7.50% 7.90%
Salary Escalation (in %)

2 and 7.5% 
thereafter

2 and 7.5% 
thereafter

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-17
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary

 increases Attrition rate Mortality rate

Sensitivity Level (-/+ 0.5%) 
increase

(-/+ 0.5%) 
decrease

(-/+ 0.5%) 
increase

(-/+ 0.5%) 
decrease

(-/+ 0.5%) 
increase

(-/+ 0.5%) 
decrease

(-/+ 0.5%) 
increase

(-/+ 0.5%) 
decrease

INR Lacs INR Lacs INR Lacs INR Lacs INR Lacs INR Lacs INR Lacs INR Lacs

obligation 18,94.55 20,11.22 20,10.60 18,94.62 19,49.67 19,52.04 19,50.81 19,50.87

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-16
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary 

increases Attrition rate Mortality rate

Sensitivity Level (-/+ 0.5%) 
increase

(-/+ 0.5%) 
decrease

(-/+ 0.5%) 
increase

(-/+ 0.5%) 
decrease

(-/+ 0.5%) 
increase

(-/+ 0.5%) 
decrease

(-/+ 0.5%) 
increase

(-/+ 0.5%) 
decrease

INR Lacs INR Lacs INR Lacs INR Lacs INR Lacs INR Lacs INR Lacs INR Lacs

obligation 19,56.23 20,31.77 20,31.37 19,56.03 19,93.90 19,90.26 19,93.14 19,93.06

as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
(Rs. in lakhs)



72

Mangalore Chemicals
& Fertilizers Limited

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)  4,41.06  6,07.94 
Between 2 and 5 years  10,32.61  12,12.96 
Between 5 and 10 years  6,21.30  5,83.86 
Beyond 10 years  15,91.35  5,36.45 
Total expected payments  36,86.32  29,41.21 

(31 March 2016: 3.78 years).

35

In light of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has incured expenses on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
agregating to Rs. 31.66 lakhs for CSR activities carried out during the current year.

2016-17 2015-16
Promotion of Education  9.20  79.46 
Sanitation and Drinking Water  7.41  31.59 
Health care  5.05  9.64 
Promotion of Art and Culture, Education, Sports and Upliftment of Society  10.00 

Total  31.66  1,20.69 
Note on CSR activities

 43.20 Lakhs
b. Amount spent during the year - Rs. 31.66 lakhs on:

In cash
paid in 
cash

Total

 -    -    -   
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above  23.17  8.49  31.66 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
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36 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

A. Names of related parties and description of relationship where control exists

Nature of Relationship  Name of the related party  
Ultimate Holding Company Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited
Holding Company Zuari Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited*
Common control Paradeep Phosphates Limited

B. Other related parties and description of relationship with whom transactions have taken place during the 
year

Nature of Relationship Name of the related party  
Arun Duggal, Chairman

Key Management Personnel N. Suresh Krishnan, Managing Director**
K. Prabhakar Rao, Whole-time Director
Deepak Anand, Managing Director**

* Zuari Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited became holding company w.e.f. 18.05.2015, which is wholly owned subsidiary of Zuari 
Agro Chemicals Limited.
**Mr. Deepak Anand was Managing Director until 31.12.2015.  Mr. N Suresh Krishnan was appointed as Managing Director 
w.e.f 01.01.2016.

MCF Ltd Employees Gratuity Fund Trust
MCF Ltd Employees Superannuation Trust

C. Summary of transactions with the related parties is as follows:

Particulars

2016-17 2015-16

Holding 
Company

Common 
control

Key Man-
agement 
Personnel

Others Holding 
Company

Common 
control

Key Man-
agement 
Personnel

Others

Purchase of Goods 136,41.64 84,26.86  -  -  261,08.39  -  -  - 
Sale of Goods 44,76.84  -  -  2,94.36  -  -  - 
Interest Payable 14,58.96  14.39  -  -  20,87.93  -  -  - 
Interest Receivable 8,41.11 -  -  -  4,04.79  -  -  - 
Rendering of Services - -  -  -  3.71  -  -  - 
Payments made on our 
behalf

 21.37 3,50.67  -  -  49.35  -  -  - 

Payments made on their 
behalf

 17.37  0.07  -  -  9.64  -  -  - 

Reimbursement of expenses - - 24.00 -  - - - 
 Managerial Remuneration

Short-term employee - -  77.23 -  -  64.88 -

Post employment - -  9.62 -  -  8.75 -

Contribution to Gratuity 
Fund

- - - 2,10.00 -  - - 3,07.00

Contribution to Superan-
nuation Fund

- - -  84.37 -  - -  69.51 

Closing Balance – 
(Credit)/Debit (81,47.04) (87,74.70) - - (213,94.13)  -  -  - 
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37 FAIR VALUES

Carrying value Fair value
As at As at As at As at As at As at

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15
Financial assets (at amortised cost)
Security deposits 6,30.05 6,61.51 6,45.12 6,30.05 6,61.51 6,45.12
Total 6,30.05 6,61.51 6,45.12 6,30.05 6,61.51 6,45.12

Borrowings (at amortised costs)
Term loans - Secured 99,57.50 101,69.97 108,60.89 99,57.50 101,69.97 108,60.89
Term loans - Unsecured  - 22,58.87 75,71.83  - 22,58.87 75,71.83
Long Term maturities of
Lease obligations

 -  - 3.66  -  - 3.66

(at amortised costs)
Security deposit 28,33.03 33,39.38 30,59.36 28,33.03 33,39.38 30,59.36
Total 127,90.53 157,68.22 214,95.74 127,90.53 157,68.22 214,95.74

receivables and trade payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

A provision for impairment in the value of investment in the preference share capital of Rs. 20000 lakhs in Bengaluru Beverages 
Ltd was made during the year 2015-16
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38 FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2017

Date of 
valuation Total

Fair value measurement using
Quoted pric-
es in active 

markets inputs
-

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Fair value of assets measured at amortised 
cost
Security Deposits 31.03.2017 6,30.05  - 6,30.05  - 
There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

Date of 
valuation Total

Fair value measurement using
Quoted pric-
es in active 

markets inputs
-

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
-

tised cost
Borrowings
Term loans - Secured 31.03.2017 99,57.50 99,57.50

Security deposit 31.03.2017 28,33.03  - 28,33.03  - 

Derivatives not designated as hedges 31.03.2017 33,15.81  - 33,15.81
There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

Date of 
valuation Total

Fair value measurement using
Quoted pric-
es in active 

markets inputs
-

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Fair value of assets measured at amortised 
cost
Security Deposits 31.03.2016 6,61.51  - 6,61.51  - 
There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.
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Date of 
valuation Total

Fair value measurement using
Quoted pric-
es in active 

markets inputs
-

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
-

tised cost
Borrowings
Term loans - Secured 31.03.2016 101,69.97 101,69.97
Term loans - Unsecured 31.03.2016 22,58.87 22,58.87

Security deposit 31.03.2016 33,39.38  - 33,39.38  - 

Derivatives not designated as hedges 31.03.2016 13,10.37  - 13,10.37
There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 1 April 2015

Date of 
valuation Total

Fair value measurement using
Quoted pric-
es in active 

markets inputs
-

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Fair value of assets measured at amortised 
cost
Security Deposits 31.03.2015 6,45.12  - 6,45.12  - 
There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

Date of 
valuation Total

Fair value measurement using
Quoted pric-
es in active 

markets inputs
-

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
-

tised cost
Borrowings
Term loans - Secured 31.03.2015 108,60.89 108,60.89
Term loans - Unsecured 31.03.2015 75,71.83 75,71.83
Long Term maturities of Lease obligations 31.03.2015 3.66 3.66

Security deposit 31.03.2015 30,59.36  - 30,59.36  - 

Derivatives not designated as hedges 31.03.2015 21,72.65  - 21,72.65
There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.
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39 Exceptional Items

Based on the directions of the Audit Committee, M/s Ernst & Young LLP were engaged to carry out forensic investigation in relation 
to all the transactions with United Breweries Holdings Ltd [UBHL] and its group companies [UB Group]. M/s Ernst & Young LLP 
submitted its report stating that investment in Bengaluru Beverages Limited (BBL) by way of subscription to its preference shares 
and advances made by the Company to UBHL might have involved irregularities and elements of mismanagement. 

The Company has provided as an exceptional item the outstanding advances of Rs. 16.68 Crore from UBHL and as an extraordi-

2016 in view of the uncertainty of recoverability.

40 First Time Adoption of Ind AS
Note No. - First-time adoption of Ind-AS

mandatory exceptions provided in Ind AS 101, as explained below.  The resulting difference in the carrying values of the assets 

Set out below are the Ind AS 101 optional exemption availed as applicable in the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Since there is no change in the functional currency, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of Prop-

A.1  Effect of Ind AS adoption for Balance Sheet
Following reconciliations along with explanations for the GAAP adjustments needs to inserted:
(i) Reconciliation of equity as at 1 April 2015 (date of transition to Ind AS)
(ii) Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2016
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40 FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS
Reconciliation of Equity

PARTICULARS Notes

As at 
31/3/2016 
(end of last 

period 
presented 

under previous 
GAAP)

As at 
01/04/2015 

(Date of
Transition)

Equity as reported under previous GAAP  301,06.26  541,42.30 

Ind AS: Adjustments Increase /(Decrease)
Opening adjustment to retained earnings  (5,19.39)
Adjustment for proposed dividend 1  (8,55.85)  8,55.85 
Finance costs 2  (8,53.74)  16,28.89 
Marked to market Gain/ (Loss) on derivatives 3  6,41.03  (13,21.64)
Deferred tax on revaluation reserve 7  69.11  (15,17.23)
Effect of spares capitalised as PPE 5  24.41  (1,61.69)
Provision for cash discount on estimation basis 4  (23.57)  (3.57)
Others  8.25  - 

Equity as reported under IND AS  285,96.51  536,22.91 

PARTICULARS Notes

Year ended 
31/3/2016 

(latest
period

presented 
under previous 

GAAP)
 (240,12.09)

Ind AS: Adjustments Increase /(Decrease)

Finance costs 2  (8,53.74)
Marked to Market Gain/ (Loss) on derivatives 3  6,41.03 

other comprehensive income under Ind AS
6  1,57.68 

Provision for Cash Discount on estimation basis 4  (23.57)
Effect of Spares Capitalised as PPE 5  24.41 
Others  (15.70)
Deferred Tax on Revaluation 7  69.11 

 (0.78)

 (240,12.87)
Other Comprehensive Income  (1,57.68)
Total Comprehensive Income under Ind AS  (241,70.55)

Note: No statement of comprehensive income was produced under previous GAAP. Therefore the above reconciliation starts with 
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31 March 2016 

1.  Proposed dividend

the balance sheet date, the entity should not recognise those dividends as a liability at the balance sheet date.

2.  Finance costs

effective interest  method. Hence at the date of transition to Ind AS, the unamortized portion of the transaction costs was 

3.  Marked to market gain/ (loss) on derivatives

taken Cross Currency Interest Rate Swap (CCIRS) to hedge the foreign currency risk and the interest rate risk. Under previous 

not restated at each balance sheet date. In relation to CCIRs, the difference between forward rate and spot rate at inception of 
forward exchange contract (i.e. premium) is amortised over the life of the CCIRS. Under Ind AS, foreign currency loan needs to 
be restated at each balance sheet date and the resulting gain/loss shall be recognised in the income statement. Further, marked 

income statement by recognising corresponding Derivative Asset/Liability.

4. Provision for cash discount

 Under the previous GAAP, cash discount extended to the dealers for making early payment is charged as an expense under the 
head “Rebates” and the Company records such discount on actual basis i.e. as and when customer claims the discount by way 
of credit note. However, under Ind AS, the company should estimate the amount of cash discount using the expected value 
method.

5.  Spares

depreciation on the same.

 
plan on an actuarial basis. Under previous GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to 

 
 

recognized in the OCI.
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7.  Deferred taxes

sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance 
sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary 

differences. According to the accounting policies, the Company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax adjustments 

the date of transition, the Company has recognised incremental deferred tax asset with a corresponding credit to retained 

tax expense. Further income tax pertaining to earlier years recognised for the period ending 31 March 2016 have been adjusted 
from retained earnings as on 1 April 2015.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
(Rs. in lakhs)
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